

Ohio Legislative Service Commission

Bill Analysis

William Schwartz

H.B. 212

131st General Assembly (As Introduced)

Reps. Thompson, Zeltwanger, Boose, Hall, Hambley, Brinkman, Becker, Koehler, Buchy, Kraus, Hood, Maag, Burkley, Young, Romanchuk, Vitale, Ginter, Retherford, Gonzales, Butler, Hagan

BILL SUMMARY

Academic content standards and model curricula

- Prohibits the State Board of Education from adopting, and the Department of Education from implementing, the Common Core State Standards, or any standards developed by any similar initiative process or program, as the state's academic content standards for English language arts mathematics, science, or social studies and voids any prior actions taken to adopt or implement the Common Core State Standards.
- Requires the State Board, to replace the academic content standards in English language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies with new standards that are consistent with the standards adopted by Massachusetts prior to that state's adoption of the Common Core State Standards, so that Ohio's standards are as identical as possible to those adopted by Massachusetts, except where an Ohio context requires otherwise.
- States that a school district is not required to utilize all or any part of the academic content standards adopted by the State Board.
- Prohibits the State Board from adopting or revising any academic content standards in English language arts, mathematics, science, or social studies until the new or revised standards are approved by the appropriate subject area subcommittee created under the bill, and approved by the General Assembly by a concurrent resolution.
- Creates the 13-member Academic Content Standards Steering Committee to do the following: (1) determine a chair and co-chair for the committee, (2) appoint four

individuals to oversee the development of the standards documents, (3) contract, if necessary, with an individual who has a "national reputation" in the areas of academic content standards and assessments to facilitate the committee's work, (4) establish a subcommittee each in the areas of English language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies to review and approve any new or revised standards, and (5) select, by majority vote of all members, a chair for each subcommittee.

• Prohibits the State Board from adopting any model curricula.

Achievement assessments and diagnostic assessments

- Requires school districts and schools to select from either the assessments administered prior to 2010 in Iowa or the assessments administered prior to 2010 in Massachusetts, or a combination of both for the elementary-level assessments in English language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies.
- Requires the Department of Education to develop a method for comparison of the assessments used by districts and schools and for comparison of the scores on those assessments for purposes of (1) report card ratings, (2) teacher and principal evaluations, and (3) the third-grade reading guarantee.
- Specifies that the elementary-level assessments be administered not earlier than the last week of April.
- Replaces the current seven high school end-of-course examinations in English language arts I, English language arts II, science, Algebra I, geometry, American history, and American government with a requirement for standards-based or norm-referenced examinations in English language arts, mathematics, and science be selected by each school district or school.
- Requires the Department to develop a method for comparison of the examinations used by districts and schools and for comparison of the scores on those examinations for purposes of (1) report card ratings, (2) teacher and principal evaluations, and (3) high school graduation.
- Prohibits the State Board of Education from using the assessments developed by the Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC), the Smarter Balanced assessments, or any other assessment related to or based on the Common Core State Standards for use as state achievement assessments.
- Eliminates the kindergarten administration of the diagnostic assessments in reading, writing, and mathematics.

Teacher and principal evaluations

- Eliminates the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System and the Ohio Principal Evaluation System and the guidelines and requirements related to those systems.
- Requires a municipal school district (Cleveland) continue to evaluate teachers and administrators under provisions of the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System and the Ohio Principal Evaluation System.

Resident Educator Summative Assessment

• Eliminates the Resident Educator Summative Assessment by prohibiting the Ohio Teacher Residency Program from requiring an entry-level classroom teacher to pass or take such an assessment during the residency program.

Release of personally identifiable data

- Requires that the standards for the Education Management Information System (EMIS), in regard to processing and reporting student data to the Department of Education, restrict access to personally identifiable information by a person who performs data processing services for a school district to just the information necessary for fulfillment of contractual obligations.
- Requires the contract between a school district and a data processing entity to include a stipulation that personally identifiable information shall not be shared with additional parties.
- Specifies that, if the U.S. Department of Education requires a grant recipient to provide personally identifiable information of students or teachers as a condition of a federal education grant, only aggregate data may be provided for such purpose.
- Prohibits a federal grant recipient from releasing personally identifiable information without informed written consent of the student's parent or guardian for a student's information or of the teacher for a teacher's information.

State Board minimum operating standards for schools

• Removes the words "and such other factors as the Board finds necessary" from the provision that enumerates categories for which the State Board must adopt minimum standards for schools.



Career advising policy

• Makes permissive, instead of mandatory as under current law, the requirement for school districts, community schools, and STEM schools to adopt a policy on career advising, which includes a plan to provide students with grade-level examples that link schoolwork to career fields, provide interventions and career advising for atrisk students, and identify courses that can award students both traditional academic and career-technical credit, among other items.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. Academic content standards and model curricula	
Repeal and replacement of Ohio's academic content standards	4
New Ohio standards	5
Other specifications for the new standards	5
Approval of new academic content standards	6
Academic Content Standards Steering Committee	7
Steering Committee composition	
Subcommittee duties	8
Subcommittee composition	
Academic content standards review committees	9
Model curricula	9
II. State achievement assessments and diagnostic assessments	9
Elementary-level assessments	9
High school assessments1	
Prohibition on use of certain assessments1	1
Kindergarten readiness diagnostic assessment1	2
III. Teacher and principal evaluations1	2
Background1	
IV. Other education provisions1	
Resident Educator Summative Assessment1	3
Release of student personally identifiable information1	3
State Board minimum operating standards for schools1	4
Career advising policies1	

CONTENT AND OPERATION

I. Academic content standards and model curricula

Repeal and replacement of Ohio's academic content standards

The bill prohibits the State Board of Education from adopting the academic content standards for English language arts, mathematics, science, or social studies developed by the Common Core State Standards Initiative or any similar initiative process or program, and further prohibits the Department of Education from



implementing such standards. The bill also voids any action taken to adopt or implement the Common Core State Standards as of the bill's effective date.¹

New Ohio standards

The bill requires the State Board, by June 30, 2015, to adopt new academic content standards for each of grades kindergarten through twelve in the areas of English language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies that are consistent with the standards adopted by Massachusetts as those standards existed prior to 2010. (See **COMMENT** 3.) The bill also requires the standards to be "as identical as possible to those adopted by Massachusetts, except where an Ohio context requires otherwise."² Even though the bill requires the adoption of new standards, the bill explicitly states that a school district or school is not required to utilize all or any part of the standards adopted by the State Board.³

The bill authorizes the State Board to periodically update the academic content standards, but requires it do so in accordance with the approval process created under the bill (see "**Approval of new academic content standards**," below).⁴

Other specifications for the new standards

The bill explicitly prohibits the withholding of state funds from a school district or school for failure to adopt or use Ohio's academic content standards.⁵

It also prohibits any state official, elected or appointed, from joining any consortium, association, or other entity on behalf of the state or any state agency when such membership would require the state or a school district board of education to cede state or school district control over education, including academic content standards or assessments related to the standards.⁶ (Continuing law prohibits any official or board of the state from "entering into any agreement or memorandum of understanding with

¹ R.C. 3301.078(B).

² R.C. 3301.079(A)(1).

³ R.C. 3301.079(A)(4), second paragraph.

⁴ R.C. 3301.079(A)(1), second paragraph.

⁵ R.C. 3301.078(D).

⁶ R.C. 3301.078(C)(1).

any federal or private entity that would require the state to cede any measure of control over the development, adoption, or revision of [any] academic content standards."⁷)

The bill limits the academic content standards that the State Board may adopt to the subject areas prescribed under current law.⁸ Those principal subject areas are English language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies. After completing standards for those areas, current law permits the State Board to adopt standards for technology, financial literacy and entrepreneurship, fine arts, and foreign language. Current law also requires the State Board to adopt the most recent standards developed by the National Association for Sport and Physical Education or its own standards for physical education.⁹

The bill also removes the current law provisions specifying that the State Board must ensure that the current standards (1) include the essential academic content and skills that students are expected to know and be able to do at each grade level that will allow each student to be prepared for postsecondary instruction and the workplace for success in the twenty-first century, (2) include the development of skill sets that promote information, media, and technological literacy, (3) include interdisciplinary, project-based, real-world learning opportunities, (4) instill life-long learning by providing essential knowledge and skills based in the liberal arts tradition, as well as STEM and career-technical education, and (5) be clearly written, transparent, and understandable by parents, educators, and the general public.¹⁰

Finally, it eliminates a provision that requires the department, whenever the State Board adopts new academic content standards or model curricula, to provide information on the use of blended or digital learning in the delivery of those standards or curricula to students.¹¹

Approval of new academic content standards

The bill creates an approval and review process by which any new or revised academic content standards in English language arts, mathematics, science, or social studies proposed by the State Board must be reviewed and approved prior to becoming effective, except for the pre-2010 Massachusetts-based standards required to be adopted

⁷ R.C. 3301.078(A).

⁸ R.C. 3301.078(C)(2).

⁹ R.C. 3301.079(A).

¹⁰ R.C. 3301.079(A)(1)(a).

¹¹ R.C. 3301.079(G).

under the bill. Any other new or revised standards must (1) be approved by each appropriate subcommittee (see "**Academic Content Standards Steering Committee**," below) and (2) be approved by concurrent resolution adopted by both the House of Representatives and the Senate.¹²

Prior to approval by concurrent resolution, the bill requires the Education Committees of the House and Senate to conduct at least three public hearings on the new or revised standards.¹³

Academic Content Standards Steering Committee

The bill establishes the Academic Content Standards Steering Committee, which must do the following:

(1) Establish a subcommittee in each of the areas of English language arts, mathematics, science, and social studies;

(2) Select a chairperson for each subcommittee by a majority vote of all committee members, and determine a chair and co-chair of the Steering Committee;

(3) Appoint four individuals to oversee the development of the standards documents, each of whom must understand and be able to use subject-specific symbols and must record comments of each subcommittee (see below). The Department of Education and State Board are authorized to provide assistance to these four individuals.

(4) Contract, if necessary, with an individual who has a national reputation in the areas of academic content standards and assessments to facilitate the work of the Steering Committee.¹⁴

Meetings of the Steering Committee must be open to the public.¹⁵

Steering Committee composition

The Steering Committee is composed of 13 members as follows:

(1) The Governor, or the Governor's designee;

¹² R.C. 3301.0718(A) and (C), second paragraph.

¹³ R.C. 3301.0718(A)(1).

¹⁴ R.C. 3301.0718(D).

¹⁵ R.C. 3301.0718(C), second paragraph.

(2) Six members, appointed by the President of the Senate, and, of whom, no more than one may be a member of the Senate; and

(3) Six members, appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and, of whom, no more than one may be a member of the House.

In appointing members, the Senate President and House Speaker must give consideration to parents of students enrolled in Ohio schools, primary and secondary education teachers, and curriculum experts, provosts, chairs, and deans of state institutions of higher education.¹⁶

Subcommittee duties

Each subcommittee must do both of the following:

(1) Approve or disapprove any new or revised standards for each subject area that are proposed by the State Board; and

(2) Obtain comments from teachers on the appropriateness and wording of the proposed standards for each grade, and if necessary, offer revisions on the proposed standards. The comments from teachers must be recorded by the individuals who oversee the development of the standards documents.¹⁷

Meetings of each subcommittee must be open to the public.¹⁸

Subcommittee composition

Not more than five persons may be appointed to serve on each subcommittee. The chairpersons of each subcommittee, who is selected by the Steering Committee, must be an instructor or professor in a related subject area at a state institution of higher education. The other subcommittee members, appointed by the State Board, must be teachers with at least ten years of teaching experience, who may be nominated by their respective school district superintendents. A school librarian, nominated by the Ohio Library Council, may provide assistance to the English language arts subcommittee. An engineer, nominated by one of the state's engineering organizations, may provide assistance to the mathematics subcommittee and the science subcommittee.¹⁹

¹⁶ R.C. 3301.0718(C).

¹⁷ R.C. 3301.0718(D)(4)(b).

¹⁸ R.C. 3301.0718(C), second paragraph.

¹⁹ R.C. 3301.0718(D)(4)(a).

Academic content standards review committees

Current law provides for the review of each subject area of the academic content standards by a separate committee. Each committee consists of three experts in the respective subject area, one parent or guardian, one educator, the Chancellor of Higher Education, or the Chancellor's designee, and the Superintendent of Public Instruction, or the Superintendent's designee. The experts, educators, and parents or guardians are appointed by the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the Governor.²⁰

The bill eliminates the provisions for these standards review committees.

Model curricula

Current law requires the State Board to adopt model curricula for each of grades kindergarten through twelve in each of the subject areas for which academic content standards are required. The law specifically permits, but does not require school districts and schools to use any of the model curricula.

The bill removes the requirement for the State Board to adopt model curricula. It further prohibits the State Board from adopting any model curricula for any of the new standards or the interim standards.²¹

II. State achievement assessments and diagnostic assessments

Elementary-level assessments

Continuing law requires public school students to be tested in English language arts and mathematics in each of grades three through eight, in science in grades five and eight, and in social studies in grades four and six. The bill requires each school district or school to select from either the assessments administered prior to 2010 in Iowa or the assessments administered prior to 2010 in Massachusetts, or a combination of both, for the required subject areas and grade levels for administration to its students. The bill requires districts and schools to make the selection beginning with the current 2015-2016 school year.²² (See **COMMENT** 3.)

²⁰ R.C. 3301.079(I).

²¹ R.C. 3301.079(A)(1)(b), (A)(2), (B), (C), (D), (F), (G), and (J), 3301.0710, 3301.0712(C), 3301.0722, 3313.60(G)(4), 3313.6020(B)(1), and Section 4(B), and repealed R.C. 3301.0721, not in the bill.

²² R.C. 3301.0710(A)(4).

The bill requires the Department of Education to develop a method for comparison of the assessments used by school districts and schools, and develop a method for comparison of the scores on those assessments for purposes of (1) calculating report card ratings and the measures and components that compile a report card rating, (2) teachers and principal evaluations, and (3) the third-grade reading guarantee.²³

The bill also eliminates "statewide" as a specification for the elementary assessments, and instead specifies that the assessments must be "end-of-year summative" assessments.²⁴ Moreover, it changes the reference of the "statewide program" of assessing student achievement to a "method" of assessing student achievement.²⁵

Finally, the bill requires the elementary-level assessments be administered not earlier than the last week of April.²⁶

High school assessments

The bill revises the composition of the high school assessment system. That system is composed of (1) a nationally standardized assessment that measures college and career readiness, and (2) seven end-of-course examinations in English language arts I, English language arts II, science, Algebra I, geometry, American history, and American government.²⁷

The bill maintains the administration of the nationally standardized assessment that measures college and career readiness. However, it revises the second portion of the system to require students take an examination selected by each district or school in the areas of English language arts, mathematics, and science that is either norm-referenced or standards-based, instead of the current seven end-of-course examinations.²⁸

In a manner similar to the elementary-level assessments, the bill requires the Department to develop a method for comparison of the assessments used by school

²⁷ R.C. 3301.0712(B).

²⁸ R.C. 3301.0712(B)(2), (C), and (D)(3), 3313.61(H), 3313.612(B) and (D), 3313.618(B)(2), and 3328.01(C)(2).

²³ R.C. 3301.0710(A)(5).

²⁴ R.C. 3301.0710(A)(1).

²⁵ R.C. 3301.0710, first and second paragraphs.

²⁶ R.C. 3301.0710(C), second paragraph.

districts and schools, and a method for a comparison of the scores on those assessments for purposes of (1) calculating report card ratings and the measures and components that compile a report card rating, (2) teachers and principal evaluations, and (3) determining high school graduation.²⁹

Finally, the bill eliminates the following current provisions related to the end-ofcourse examinations: (1) timeline and specifications for the American history and American government examinations, (2) requirement for the State Board to determine and designate scoring levels and related scoring items for the end-of-course examinations, (3) specifications for the use of substitute examinations in certain subject areas in lieu of end-of-course examinations, (4) requirement for the examinations to be selected jointly with the Superintendent of Public Instruction and Chancellor of Higher Education in consultation with certain faculty members at state institutions of higher education, (5) exemption of certain students who earned course credit prior to July 1, 2014, from taking the corresponding end-of-course examination, and (6) requirement for the State Board to consider additional assessments that may be used as substitute examinations in lieu of the end-of-course examinations.³⁰

Prohibition on use of certain assessments

The bill explicitly prohibits the State Board of Education from using the assessments developed by the Partnership for Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC), the Smarter Balanced assessments, or any other assessments related to or based on the Common Core State Standards, as any of the state's achievement assessments.³¹

H.B. 64 of the 131st General Assembly, the biennial budget act, explicitly prohibited funds appropriated from the General Revenue Fund from being used to purchase an assessment developed by PARCC for use as the state elementary and secondary achievement assessments.³² Additionally, that act prohibited any federal Race to the Top program funds from being used for any purpose related to the state elementary and secondary achievement assessments.³³ (See **COMMENT** 2.)

²⁹ R.C. 3301.0712(B)(2), second paragraph.

³⁰ R.C. 3301.0712(B)(3), (4), (5), (6), and (7), and 3313.618(A)(2).

³¹ R.C. 3301.078(B).

 $^{^{32}}$ R.C. 3301.078 as amended by H.B. 64, that version of the section not in the bill.

³³ Section 263.283 of Am. Sub. H.B. 64 of the 131st General Assembly.

Kindergarten readiness diagnostic assessment

Under current law, each school district, community school, and STEM school is required to administer certain diagnostic assessments at the appropriate grade level to specified students. For grades kindergarten through two, the prescribed diagnostic assessments are in reading, writing, and mathematics, and for grade three, the prescribed diagnostic assessments are in reading and writing. These assessments are used to determine which students need to receive additional services in order to attain grade level performance.³⁴

The bill eliminates the kindergarten administration of those assessments.³⁵

III. Teacher and principal evaluations

The bill eliminates the standard and alternative frameworks that are the basis for the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System (OTES) and the Ohio Principal Evaluation System (OPES) (see "**Background**," below).³⁶ More specifically, it eliminates the requirement for school districts, schools, and educational service centers to evaluate their teachers and administrators based on the state evaluation frameworks.³⁷ The bill also eliminates (1) the requirement for the State Board to develop a standards-based state framework for the evaluation of teachers based on prescribed specifications, which are also eliminated under the bill, and (2) the requirements outlining teacher and administrator evaluations, such as teacher and administrator ratings, frequency of evaluations, and performance guidelines.

Despite the bill's changes to OTES and OPES, it does not expressly prohibit a district or school from conducting its own evaluations of its teachers and administrators. Moreover, in instances where a reference is made to the state teacher and administrator evaluation frameworks (eliminated in the bill), the bill simply refers to "any policy adopted by the district board prescribing teacher evaluations." Thus, it appears that a school district, school, or educational service center could establish its own teacher and administrator policies.

³⁷ R.C. 3319.02(D).

³⁴ R.C. 3301.079(D).

³⁵ R.C. 3301.079(D) and 3301.0715(A)(2) and (D); conforming changes in R.C. 3301.0714(B)(1)(n), 3302.03(B)(1)(g) and (C)(1)(g), and 3313.608(D).

³⁶ R.C. 3319.02(D) and 3319.11; Repealed R.C. 3319.111, 3319.112), and 3319.114, repealed sections not in the bill; conforming changes in R.C. 3302.04(D)(4)(c), 3302.15(C)(2)(b), 3311.80, 3311.84, 3313.608(H)(1)(c), 3314.03(A)(11)(i), 3317.141(B) and (C), 3319.58(B) and (D), 3326.11, 3328.01(C)(2), and 3333.0411.

While the bill eliminates the frameworks for districts, schools, and educational service centers, it does not, however, eliminate the teacher and administrator evaluation system currently in place for a municipal school district (Cleveland). Instead, the bill requires the district to continue to evaluate teachers and administrators under the OTES and OPES frameworks.³⁸

Background

Current law requires all school districts and educational service centers, and all community schools and STEM schools that receive federal Race to the Top grant funds to adopt a standards-based teacher evaluation system that conforms to a framework developed by the State Board of Education. The traditional evaluation framework provides for multiple evaluation factors, one of which must be student academic growth and must account for 50% of each evaluation. An alternative framework exists for districts, schools, and educational service centers that provides for student academic growth to account for 35% of each evaluation, teacher performance to account for 50% of each evaluation, teacher performance to account for 50% of each evaluation, student surveys, teacher self-evaluations, peer review evaluations, student portfolios, or any other component determined appropriate by the district board or school governing authority.

IV. Other education provisions

Resident Educator Summative Assessment

The Ohio Teacher Residency Program is a four-year support program for entrylevel classroom teachers who hold the resident educator license or an alternative resident educator license. Those teachers must complete the program to qualify for a professional educator license. As a part of the program, those teachers must pass the Resident Educator Summative Assessment.³⁹

The bill eliminates the Resident Educator Summative Assessment by prohibiting the residency program from requiring a teacher to pass or take such a test during the program.⁴⁰

Release of student personally identifiable information

The bill requires that the standards for the Education Management Information System (EMIS), in regard to processing and reporting student data to the Department of

³⁸ R.C. 3311.80 and 3311.84.

³⁹ R.C. 3319.223 and Ohio Administrative Code 3301-24-04.

⁴⁰ R.C. 3319.223(A)(3) and (D)(1).

Education, restrict access to personally identifiable information by a person who performs data processing services for a school district to just the information necessary for fulfillment of contractual obligations. The bill also requires the contract between a school district and a data processing entity to include a stipulation that personally identifiable information shall not be shared with additional parties.⁴¹ (EMIS is the statewide electronic data system maintained by the Department. It includes district, school, personnel, and student data used in reporting and in computing operating funding to districts and schools.

The bill also specifies that, if the U.S. Department of Education requires a grant recipient to provide personally identifiable information of students or teachers as a condition of a federal education grant, only aggregate data may be provided for such purpose. Finally, the bill prohibits a federal grant recipient from releasing personally identifiable information without informed written consent of either (1) the student's parent or guardian for a student's information, or (2) the teacher for a teacher's information.⁴²

State Board minimum operating standards for schools

The bill removes the words "and such other factors as the Board finds necessary" from the provision that enumerates categories for which the State Board must adopt minimum standards for schools.⁴³

Current law requires the State Board to "formulate and prescribe minimum standards to be applied to all elementary and secondary schools in this state for the purpose of providing children access to a general education of high quality according to the learning needs of each individual." These minimum standards specifically must provide for (1) licensing of teachers, administrators, and other professional personnel, (2) efficient and effective instructional materials and equipment, (3) organization, administration, and supervision of each school, including regulations for preparing all necessary records and reports and the preparation of a statement of policies and objectives for each school, (4) safe buildings, grounds, health and sanitary facilities and services, (5) student admissions and promotion, and (6) graduation requirements. These standards are not the academic content standards that are required by separate law, as amended by the bill.

⁴¹ R.C. 3301.0714(D)(1).

⁴² R.C. 3301.078(E).

⁴³ R.C. 3301.07(D)(2).

Career advising policies

Current law requires school districts, community schools, and STEM schools to adopt a policy on career advising, which includes a plan to provide students with grade-level examples that link schoolwork to career fields, provide interventions and career advising for at-risk students, and identify courses that can award students both traditional academic and career-technical credit, among other items.

The bill makes this policy permissive, instead of mandatory.⁴⁴

COMMENT

1. The federal No Child Left Behind Act (NCLB)⁴⁵ requires each state's educational agency to implement a set of annual assessments in reading or English language arts, mathematics, and science for use as "the primary means of determining the yearly performance of the State" and the performance of each school district and school.⁴⁶ That law goes on to require those assessments implemented by each state's educational agency to be (1) "the same academic assessments used to measure the achievement of all children," (2) "aligned with the State's challenging academic content and student academic achievement standards," and (3) participated in by all students.⁴⁷ Noncompliance with these federal law provisions might jeopardize the state's Title I⁴⁸ funding that is used by districts and schools for services to economically disadvantaged children. It is not clear whether a testing system in which each district or school unilaterally selects the assessments to be administered complies with NCLB.

It also may not be clear whether the bill's provisions comply with the state's NCLB flexibility waiver for the 2015-2016 school year granted by the U.S. Department of Education.⁴⁹ Specifically, the elimination of the Ohio Teacher Evaluation System and Ohio Principal Evaluation System might result in Ohio being noncompliant with its waiver because those systems and their composition are specific components included in Ohio's current flexibility waiver. Additionally, the elimination of Ohio's current

⁴⁴ R.C. 3313.6020(A)(1).

⁴⁵ No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, Pub. L. No. 107-110, 20 United States Code (U.S.C.) 6301 et seq.

⁴⁶ 20 U.S.C. 6311(b)(3)(A).

⁴⁷ 20 U.S.C. 6311(b)(3)(C).

⁴⁸ Pub. L. No. 89-10, Title I, as added Pub. L. No. 107-110, Title I, § 101, January 8, 2002, 115 Stat. 1439.

⁴⁹ <u>http://www.ed.gov/news/press-releases/us-department-education-approves-esea-flexibility-renewal-four-states</u>.

academic content standards in favor of standards based on those of Massachusetts as they existed in that state prior to 2010 also might not comply with the waiver. That is because Ohio's current flexibility waiver requires the state to have college- and careerready standards, and it is unclear whether the bill's new standards based on the pre-2010 Massachusetts standards would meet that requirement. Thus, the Department might have to request changes to the waiver in order to implement those provisions of the bill.

2. The bill was introduced prior to the enactment of H.B. 64, H.B. 70, and H.B. 2, all of the 131st General Assembly. Those acts contain sections of law that are included in the bill. Therefore, the bill does not reflect revisions to the law made in those acts.

3. The bill requires the new academic content standards to be adopted by July 1, 2015. In addition, the bill requires districts and schools to select their elementary assessments so they are in place for the current 2015-2016 school year. Those provisions might require further amendment to comport with the timing of deliberations on the bill.

HISTORY	
ACTION	DATE
Introduced	05-18-15

H0212-I-131.docx/emr

